
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that the Parks and Recreation Committee of the City of 
Stoughton, Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the 
date, time and location given below. 
 
 
 

Meeting of the: PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF 
STOUGHTON 

 

Date & Time:  Tuesday, October 17, 2023 at 6:00 pm 
 

Location: Hybrid meeting with in-person and virtual options. 
 

In-Person: City Hall Conference Room (207 S. Forrest St, Stoughton, WI 
53589) 
 
Virtual: 
 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83949519879?pwd=aVo1YkhPczZlM1dacUtN
bEF6RlZSUT09  
 
Meeting ID: 839 4951 9879 
Passcode: 497976 

 
One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,83949519879#,,,,*497976# US (Chicago) 
+16469313860,,83949519879#,,,,*497976# US 
 

 

Members: Regina Hirsch, Phil Caravello, Daniel Payton, Patrick Butler, Jim Brandt, 
Ethan Scheiwe, Tim Swadley 

 

CC: Attorney Matt Dregne, Department Heads, Stoughton Newspapers, Deb 
Waterstone, Sue Strandlie, Sarah Monette, Jon Lewis, Bob Diebel, 
Council Members 

 
Item #   CALL TO ORDER 
 

1 Call to Order 
 
2 Roll Call 
 
3 Approval of Minutes from August 15, 2023 
 
4 Communications 
 Member Communications 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83949519879?pwd=aVo1YkhPczZlM1dacUtNbEF6RlZSUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83949519879?pwd=aVo1YkhPczZlM1dacUtNbEF6RlZSUT09


 Director’s Report 
 
 
Item #   OLD BUSINESS     
 

5 Tee Naasak Park Master Plan (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 

Item #   NEW BUSINESS      
 

6   Teigen Farm Park Restoration Plan (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 

Future Agenda Items 
 STI Development 
 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan Update 
 Magnolia Springs Park Master Plan 
 



 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Tuesday, August 15, 2023  
This meeting was done hybrid  

In-Person Option: Stoughton Council Chambers (321 S. Fourth Street)  
Virtual Option: Join Zoom Meeting  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84666042387?pwd=TjM2OVY5a2k0MFdGcW c1c2Zvcy9RQT09   
Meeting ID: 846 6604 2387  
Passcode: 926936   
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)  Meeting ID: 846 6604 2387 Passcode: 926936 
 

 

Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, DJ Payton, Patrick Butler, Jim Brandt, Ethan Scheiwe, Mayor Tim Swadley and 
Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
Absent: None 
Guest: Emma Wenman, Daniel Schmitt, Joe 
 
Call to Order: Chairperson Caravello called to order at 6:03 pm 
 
Approval of Minutes from June 20, 2023   
Motion to approve the Minutes from June 20, 2023 by Payton, seconded by Hirsch 
 
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Communication-none 
Directors Report-Director Glynn reviewed Director Report, highlighted River Park, Virgin Lake Trail and Mandt Park Master Plan  
 
Tee Naasak Park Master Plan 
 
Presentation by Emma Wenman and Daniel Schmitt from MSA for Tee Naasak Park Master Plan, committee feedback will be 
included in updated plan 
 
Future Agenda Items 
 
STI Development   
Recreation & Aquatics Feasibility Study   
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan Update   
Magnolia Springs Park Restoration Plan   
Magnolia Springs Park Master Plan 
 
Motion to adjourn by Hirsch seconded by Butler 
Motion carried unanimously at 8:00pm 



Director’s Report 
October 2023 

Riverfront Project 

- We continue to go through the permitting process with the DNR. 
- I had a coordination meeting with REP and Strand regarding the River Park and the river corridor 

improvements in Mandt Park. There are two current deflectors planned downstream of 4th 
Street and they likely will be in the same permit application as the two launches for Mandt Park.  

Virgin Lake Trail 

- The trail is under construction. The progress to date includes clearing and grubbing for the 
entire length of the trail, and the excavation and base material has been completed from 
Jackson Street to the Virgin Lake Park shelter (the contractor is working north). I have had a few 
calls from neighbors that asked about trail width, surfacing options, and property boundaries.  

51 West Parks  

- A soil boring was completed for the restroom at Eggleson’s Woods Park.  

Tee Naasak Park Master Plan 

- I reviewed the draft master plan.  
- I also have been involved with the parkland dedication for the new apartment building on 

Cromwell Court.  

STI Development/Feasibility Study 

- Hunden will be presenting the feasibility study report at the October 24th meeting.  

River Trail Planning Study 

- There’s no update regarding this. Strand recommended waiting until the River Park is permitted 
because that will determine if we will be having a trail in the millpond and the resulting 
connection to Mandt Park.   

Magnolia Springs Park 

- We had the neighborhood focus group meeting for the park. The neighbors are concerned 
about the possibility of the playground in the northern area of the park and would like to see it 
located along Orchid Avenue. We decided to have it in the northern area to protect the 
woodland area. However, the restoration plan calls for removing the walnut trees and creating 
an oak savannah. The area along Orchid Avenue doesn’t have any oak trees. I reached out to 
Eldon Homes and no grading has been completed to date in the park. They are open to the 
possibility of grading the area along Orchid Avenue for a playground. This area is more 
centralized to the neighborhood and would provide better visibility to the playground area.  

Mandt Park Improvements 

- The soil borings for the park were completed.  
- The area south of the Mandt Center will be surveyed the week of October 16th. This will aid the 

design for the roadway and the service drive(s) for the Mandt Center.  



Director’s Report 
October 2023 

Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (CORP) Update 

- I attended the farmer’s market on 8/26 and Gazebo Musikk on 8/31 to get public input for the 
CORP update.   

- The survey was sent out via our email database and social media accounts. An insert will also be 
included in the Stoughton Utilities’ October billing statement.  

Racetrack Park Master Plan Implementation 

- The property owner of 2464 County Road A is currently reviewing the offer to purchase. I 
worked with Robinson Brothers about the cost to raze the property ($35,000).  

Ridge Street/Cooper’s Causeway Trail 

- I met with Buck Sweeney, the Mayor, City Attorney, and Planning Director regarding the trail 
and vacation of the right of way.  

- I arranged for a site survey and multiple exhibits for the resolution.  

Ridge Street/Cooper’s Causeway Trail 

- Colin Butler completed his Eagle Scout project which are fishing line recycling stations. There are 
several stations located within the City and are made out of PVC. Parks maintenance will empty 
the stations and recycle the line.  



 

Date:   September 12, 2023 

From:   Dan Glynn, Director of Parks & Recreation  

To:   Parks & Recreation Committee 

Subject: Magnolia Springs Wetland & Woodland Restoration Plan    

 

Background 

The land dedicated for a park in the Magnolia Springs Development includes a pond and established 
woodlands. The ponds and the woodlands were the main reason for the site being selected for the park. 
After visiting the site during the site selection process, much of the area did not look like it was 
maintained with buckthorn present. Heartland Ecological was contracted to complete the restoration 
plan for the property in July.  

Goals 

The following goals and objectives for the parkland were established: 

• Restore the existing woodland and wetland communities to improve native plant diversity and 
wildlife habitat. 

• Restore newly graded areas to site-appropriate native habitats that tie into existing natural 
communities. 

• Maintain the park primarily as natural habitat that is aesthetically pleasing and provides a 
positive park user experience, whether they are using the playground, trails through the park, or 
the recreational trail corridor. 

• Establish natural habitats that require routine ecological maintenance, such as prescribed 
burning, after initial and more intensive restoration and establishment activities are completed. 

Existing Conditions 

Heartland completed a site visit where they assessed the existing conditions for the parkland. The 
existing conditions included a degraded woodland, a pond, wetland, abandoned farm structures, 
Eurasian meadow, and fallow field. They found that the wooded areas within the parkland had generally 
similar composition throughout the property. There was no resemblance of a native plant community or 
oak ecosystem. The dominant tree canopy was black walnut. Several large bur oak trees are present in 



different areas of the park. Other existing condition observations included a degraded herbaceous layer, 
bank erosion along the pond, and reed canary grass in wetland areas. 

Restoration Concept  

The restoration concept includes: 

• Restoring the woodland to an oak savanna. The goal is to provide native woodland communities 
that allow for visibility throughout the park for users.  

• Restoring the trail corridor and northwest portion of the parkland with a shortgrass prairie. The 
goal is to provide aesthetically pleasing native plant diversity for the park user, stabilize soils, 
provide nectar and pollen resources for pollinators, and provide wildlife habitat.  

• Restoring the pond and wetland. The goal of the pond and wetland restoration is to stabilize 
soils, improve water quality, improve native species cover and diversity, and enhance the park 
user experience when viewing these areas.  

Implementation 

Implementation is split into two phases due to access to the site (development phasing). It is anticipated 
that it could take three years for the restoration to be completed followed by three years of 
establishment. The total cost to implement and establish is $161,000. The implementation is budgeted 
in the 5-year CIP utilizing impact fees from the development.  



Table of Contents
A. Comprehensive Plan Land Use Location Map...2
B. Vicinity Map........................................................3
C. Planned Development Written Description.........4

Appendix: Plan Sheets
- Map with Owners within 300 feet
- Street Tree Plan (Informational Only)

General Development Plan (GDP)
Owner:   
Eldon Land Development, LLC
3092 Linnerud Drive
Stoughton, WI 53589
Contact: Rob Hostrawser
608-480-9432

Project Planner:  
MSA Professional Services, Inc.
1702 Pankratz St.
Madison, WI  53704
Contacts: Stephen Tremlett  
(608) 242-6621

Project Civil Engineer: 
MSA Professional Services, Inc.
1702 Pankratz St.
Madison, WI  53704
Contacts: Kevin Lord 
(608) 242-6617

MAGNOLIA SPRINGSMAGNOLIA SPRINGS
NEIGHBORHOODNEIGHBORHOOD

PLANNED DEVELOPMENTPLANNED DEVELOPMENT

j

COUNCIL APPROVED DATE: X
LAST MODIFIED DATE: 05/01/2023



2 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan

A. LOCATION MAP
Excerpt from the City of 
Stoughton’s Comprehensive 
Plan

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!!

!

!

!
! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

! !
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

! !
!

!

!

! !

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!!

!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!!!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!!!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!

!

!
!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!

!!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!
!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!
!

!

!

!
!

! !

!
!

! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

")N

")B

£¤51

£¤51
¬«138

¬«138

Yahara

Riv
er

80'

Lake Kegonsa

")A

Halverson Rd

Starr School Rd

")A

Skaalen Rd

Spri
ng

 R
d

City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan

Map
6c

Future Land Use

±Shaping places, shaping change

VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.

0 0.75 1.50.375
Miles

** See Table 9 for Acreage Totals.

DRAFT

Future Land Use
Agriculture/Rural

Unsewered Residential

Single Family Residential

Two Family Residential

Multi-Family Residential

Planned Office

Neighborhood Office

Planned Business

Neighborhood Business

Planned Industrial

Right-of-Way

Surface Water

Institutional

General Industrial

Heavy Industrial

Landfill/Extraction

Environmental Corridor (subject to confirmation)*

Recreation or Public Open Space

Planned Neighborhood

Central Business

Planned Stoughton Urban Development Area**

Railroads

! ! 2017 Municipal Boundaries

2017 ETJ Boundary

2017  Limited Service Areas

2017 Urban Service Areas

1. Planned Business
2. Institutional
3. Recreation or
    Public Open Space
4. Multi-Family Residential
5. Planned Office
6. Planned Industrial

1
2

3
4

5

6

1. Single Family Residential
2. Two Family Residential
3. Multi-Family Residential
4. Institutional
5. Neighborhood Office
6. Neighborhood Business
7. Recreation or
    Public Open Space

1
2
3

45
6
7

*Environmental corridors are a composite of the most important natural resources.
Individual components consist of most of those elements seen on Map 2: Natural
Resources. These include: DNR Wetlands, 100 Year Floodplain, Woodlands,
Public Lands, Steep Slopes above 12%, and all other Environmental Corridors as
defined by CARPC. Within the Stoughton Urban Service Area, only Corridors 
defined by CARPC are depicted.

Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use.
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated 
zoning districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. 
Existing (not future) land use pattern shown beyond Planned Development Area.

Planned Mixed Use

Draft: July 5, 2017

Sources: Dane County LIO, City of Stoughton, CARPC, FEMA, WI DNR,
Madison Area Transportation Planning Board

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!!

!

!

!
! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

! !
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

! !
!

!

!

! !

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!!

!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!!!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!!!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!

!

!
!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!

!!!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!
!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!
!

!

!

!
!

! !

!
!

! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

")N

")B

£¤51

£¤51
¬«138

¬«138

Yahara

Riv
er

80'

Lake Kegonsa

")A

Halverson Rd

Starr School Rd

")A

Skaalen Rd

Spri
ng

 R
d

City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan

Map
6c

Future Land Use

±Shaping places, shaping change

VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.

0 0.75 1.50.375
Miles

** See Table 9 for Acreage Totals.

DRAFT

Future Land Use
Agriculture/Rural

Unsewered Residential

Single Family Residential

Two Family Residential

Multi-Family Residential

Planned Office

Neighborhood Office

Planned Business

Neighborhood Business

Planned Industrial

Right-of-Way

Surface Water

Institutional

General Industrial

Heavy Industrial

Landfill/Extraction

Environmental Corridor (subject to confirmation)*

Recreation or Public Open Space

Planned Neighborhood

Central Business

Planned Stoughton Urban Development Area**

Railroads

! ! 2017 Municipal Boundaries

2017 ETJ Boundary

2017  Limited Service Areas

2017 Urban Service Areas

1. Planned Business
2. Institutional
3. Recreation or
    Public Open Space
4. Multi-Family Residential
5. Planned Office
6. Planned Industrial

1
2

3
4

5

6

1. Single Family Residential
2. Two Family Residential
3. Multi-Family Residential
4. Institutional
5. Neighborhood Office
6. Neighborhood Business
7. Recreation or
    Public Open Space

1
2
3

45
6
7

*Environmental corridors are a composite of the most important natural resources.
Individual components consist of most of those elements seen on Map 2: Natural
Resources. These include: DNR Wetlands, 100 Year Floodplain, Woodlands,
Public Lands, Steep Slopes above 12%, and all other Environmental Corridors as
defined by CARPC. Within the Stoughton Urban Service Area, only Corridors 
defined by CARPC are depicted.

Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use.
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated 
zoning districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. 
Existing (not future) land use pattern shown beyond Planned Development Area.

Planned Mixed Use

Draft: July 5, 2017

Sources: Dane County LIO, City of Stoughton, CARPC, FEMA, WI DNR,
Madison Area Transportation Planning Board

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!!

!

!

!
! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

! !
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

! !
!

!

!

! !

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!!!

!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!!

!

!

!!

!!!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!!!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!

!

!
!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!!

!!!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!!
!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!
!

!

!

!
!

! !

!
!

! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

")N

")B

£¤51

£¤51
¬«138

¬«138

Yahara

Riv
er

80'

Lake Kegonsa

")A

Halverson Rd

Starr School Rd

")A

Skaalen Rd

Spri
ng

 R
d

City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan

Map
6c

Future Land Use

±Shaping places, shaping change

VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.

0 0.75 1.50.375
Miles

** See Table 9 for Acreage Totals.

DRAFT

Future Land Use
Agriculture/Rural

Unsewered Residential

Single Family Residential

Two Family Residential

Multi-Family Residential

Planned Office

Neighborhood Office

Planned Business

Neighborhood Business

Planned Industrial

Right-of-Way

Surface Water

Institutional

General Industrial

Heavy Industrial

Landfill/Extraction

Environmental Corridor (subject to confirmation)*

Recreation or Public Open Space

Planned Neighborhood

Central Business

Planned Stoughton Urban Development Area**

Railroads

! ! 2017 Municipal Boundaries

2017 ETJ Boundary

2017  Limited Service Areas

2017 Urban Service Areas

1. Planned Business
2. Institutional
3. Recreation or
    Public Open Space
4. Multi-Family Residential
5. Planned Office
6. Planned Industrial

1
2

3
4

5

6

1. Single Family Residential
2. Two Family Residential
3. Multi-Family Residential
4. Institutional
5. Neighborhood Office
6. Neighborhood Business
7. Recreation or
    Public Open Space

1
2
3

45
6
7

*Environmental corridors are a composite of the most important natural resources.
Individual components consist of most of those elements seen on Map 2: Natural
Resources. These include: DNR Wetlands, 100 Year Floodplain, Woodlands,
Public Lands, Steep Slopes above 12%, and all other Environmental Corridors as
defined by CARPC. Within the Stoughton Urban Service Area, only Corridors 
defined by CARPC are depicted.

Shapes on map represent general recommendations for future land use.
Actual boundaries between different land use types and associated 
zoning districts may vary somewhat from representations on this map. 
Existing (not future) land use pattern shown beyond Planned Development Area.

Planned Mixed Use

Draft: July 5, 2017

Sources: Dane County LIO, City of Stoughton, CARPC, FEMA, WI DNR,
Madison Area Transportation Planning Board



3City of Stoughton, Wisconsin

Pr
os

pe
ct

 L
n

Es
ta

te
 L

n

Ve
te

ra
ns

 R
d

S 
A

ca
de

m
y 

St

E South St

W
ill

ia
m

s 
D

r

H
oe

l A
ve

Barberry Rd

K
in

g 
St

W South St

S 
Va

n 
B

ur
en

 S
t

N
Page

St

W Jefferson St

Skaalen Rd

Jackson St

A
sh

be
rr

y 
Ln

N
 V

an
 B

ur
en

 S
t

Taylor Ln

W
Vi

ew
W

ay

McComb Rd

Hamilton St

N
 M

ad
is

on
 S

t

Marie
Dr

E Main St

Dunkirk Ave

Ea
st

St

Quam Dr

M
cC

om
b

R
d

Rutland-Dunn Town Line Rd

Co
lli

ns
R

d

Giles St

W Main St

Ki
ng

s
Ly

nn
R

d

A
m

un
ds

on
 P

kw
y

W South St

W Prospect St

Robert St

H
ill

 S
t

Otteson Dr

N
yg

aa
rd

 S
t

Marie Dr

Garden Ave

Ben
Waite Cir

Hoel Cir

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

H
as

ke
ll 

C
t

R
ow

e 
St

Johnson Ct

Pl
ea

sa
nt

 V
ie

w
 D

r

Moe Cir

Velkommen Way

St
ik

le
st

ad
 C

t

Roby Rd

W Milwaukee St

S 
D

iv
is

io
n 

St

Autu mn Crst

Markens Gate Rd

Su
m

m
it 

Av
e

O
ak

vi
e w

D
r

Odegard Dr

La
ru

m Ln

Sh
er

m
an

 S
t

Ridge St

Kriedeman Dr

Korgen Dr

Eastwood
Dr

N
 M

or
ris

 S
t

Sil verado
Dr

Li
nn

er
ud

Dr

Hilldale Cir

S 
Fo

ur
th

 S
t

Aspen Rd

W Wilson St

Vernon St

Forton St

Barberry Rd

R
ac

et
ra

ck
 R

d

W McKinley St

Stone Crest
Rd

Cedarbrook Ln

Bre
wer

 C
t

Ash Ln

O
akridge

W
ay

West St

North St

Devonshire Ct

S
Q

u a
m

Dr

Tara Ln

O
ls

on
 C

t

C
ou

nt
ry

 C
lu

b 
R

d

Chapin Ln

Anne
Dr

Valberg Dr

Fo
rto

n
Ct

Burritt
Rd

Harding St

H
an

so
n

Rd

Molin
e St

Fieldview Ln

Giehler Dr

E Milwaukee St

Park St

Ho
m

m
e 

Ct

Lync h
Cir

Pa
ul

i C
t

Sc
ot

t C
ir

H
ar

ris
on

 C
t

A
sh

be
rr

y
Ct

W Milwaukee St

C
ot

to
nw

oo
d

D
r

Hilldale Ln

S Page St

St
ou

gh
to

n 
Av

e

Va
lle

y 
Vi

ew
 D

r

W Taft St

Sundt Ln

Hea
rtbe at Cir

E Chicago St

R
iv

er
vi

ew
 D

r

Greig Trl

Harold Ct

Sunrise Ct

S 
H

ar
ris

on
 S

t

Sk
in

ne
r L

n

Garfield St

N
or

se
 P

kw
y

Outlook Ct

Shadyside Dr

E McKinley St

O
ak

 D
r

E Taft St

W Washington St

Jo
hn

so
n 

St

N
Ac

ad
em

y
St

Ridge St

Hyland Dr

Buckingham Rd

K
ris

ti 
Ln

Matthew Way

S 
M

on
ro

e 
St

Clancey Ln

Clay St

Hi
l l

cr
es

tR
d

Roy Ave

S 
M

or
ris

 S
t

S 
W

at
er

 S
t

Aaker Rd

S 
Fr

an
kl

in
 S

t

Nelson St

Clyde St

N
 M

on
ro

e 
St

V
irg

in
La

ke
Dr

Harding St

Ho
m

m
e

Ln

Pa
lm

er
 S

t

Giles St

Sh
irl

ey
 S

t

S 
G

je
rt

so
n 

St

C
ha

le
t D

r

Eisenhower Rd

S 
H

en
ry

 S
t

P
ro

gr
es

s
Ln

S 
Pr

ai
rie

 S
t

W Washington St

G
ra

nt
 S

t

Schefelker Ln

G
ra

nt
 S

t

Smedal Dr

N
 F

ra
nk

lin
 S

t

Mellum Dr

N
 P

ra
iri

e 
St

Coolidge Rd

S 
M

ad
is

on
 S

t

Garfield St

W Jefferson St

S 
H

ar
ris

on
 S

t

Oak St

E Jefferson St

Sh
er

m
an

 S
t

S 
Fi

fth
 S

t

N
 H

en
ry

 S
t

E Washington St

S 
Fo

rr
es

t S
t

N
 L

yn
n 

St

Westchester Cir

C
hu

rc
h 

St

S 
Si

xt
h 

St

Pi
ne

 S
t

S 
Se

ve
nt

h 
St

S 
Fi

fth
 S

t

N
Di

vi
sio

n
St

Ke
ns

in
gt

on
S

q

W Broadway St

S Lynn St

Oak
w

oo
d Ct

W Randolph St

M
on

ro
e 

C
t

Sk
yl

in
e 

D
r

Levanger Ln

E Academy St

Se
a

m

onson Cir

M
el

aa
s 

C
ir

West St

B
er

ge
n 

C
t

Pa ra
di

se
Dr

M
an

ill
a 

St

Hoiby Rd

Yahara Rd

N
 H

ar
ris

on
 S

t

Ortega Dr

Je
ns

 C
t

Sk
yr

id
ge

 C
t

Br
is

to
l C

t

N
Fo

rre
st

St

H
ig

h 
Po

in
t C

ir

Brooklyn Dr

Skyline Ln

Industrial Cir

Ve
a 

C
t

B
ic

k l
e y

Ct

El
m

 S
t

Dv
or

ak
Ct

O
ak

 O
pe

ni
ng

 D
r

A
re

nd
al

 C
t

Roosevelt St

Erin Hl

Lowell St

Truman Rd

Hyland Dr

Nordic Trl

Chapin Ct

G
ilrust Ave

Ri
dg

ew
oo

d
Dr

Overlook Dr

W Chicago St

B
jo

in
Dr

Blue Heron Ct

Park St

B
lack

O
ak

Dr

Maple Ct

Mai n -P
ag

e
C

t

E Pro
sp

ec
t St

Anderson Ave

Oak Knoll Ln

Patterson St

Ei
gh

th
 S

t

Schroeder Ln

S 
B

ro
ok

ly
n 

D
r

Q
ui

nn
 L

n

Sk
og

er
 D

r

Alice Cir

Ap
oll

o Cir

Pe
te

rs
on

 D
r

B
er

ry
 S

t

N
 M

on
ro

e 
St

E Wilson
St

Carl Ave

N
 G

je
rt

so
n 

St

Isham St

Duncan Rd

N
 M

ad
is

on
 S

t

Keenan Ln

N
 P

ra
iri

e 
St

S
aw

ye
r R

d

Riverside Dr

N
or

a 
St

FellandSt

H
ill

si
de

 A
ve

Lake Woods Way

Business
P

ar
k

Ci
r

Ha
rv

es
t L

n

Nottingham
Rd

Pa
rk

 V
ie

w
 D

rDeer Point Dr

Spring Rd

Kvam
m

e
Ln

Wood View Dr

E South St

N
 M

on
ro

e 
St

Meadow Dr

Christiansen Way

Meadow
G

rn

Holtan Rd

Business Park Cir

Shore View Dr

Stoney Rid
ge

Tr
l

Kegonsa Rd

CoopersCsw
y

Yahara Rd

Aalseth Ln

Kenilworth Ct

Sh
er

yl
Ln

M
an

dt
 P

kw
y

La
rv

ik
Ln

D
ev

on
sh

ire
 R

d

H
ild

eb
ra

nd
t S

t

Course View Dr

C
om

m
er

ce
 R

d

Vernon St

Furseth Rd

Lunde Cir

Ke

nsington
Sq

")N

")N

")A

")A

")B

¬«138 ¬«138

¬«138

¬«138

¬«138

£¤51

£¤51

£¤51
£¤51

£¤51

£¤51

Zoning Map
City of Stoughton

City of Stoughton Municipal Boundary
City of Stoughton Tax Parcel Boundary
Railroad
Building Footprint
Surface Water

Zoning Class
Right of Way
ER-1
SR-3
SR-4
SR-5
SR-6
TR-6
MR-10
MR-24
Planned Development
Neighborhood Business
Planned Business
Central Business
Neighborhood Office
Planned Office
Rural Holding
Institutional
Parks and Open Space
Planned Industrial
General Industrial
Heavy Industrial

Adopted December 22, 2009
Revision November 24, 2020

Source: Dane County LIO

Z
0 550 1,100 1,650275

Feet

Date: 11/25/2020

Mandt Pkwy

Fa
ll

H
av

en

N
or

dl
an

d 
D

r

Glacier Moraine Dr

Oak Opening Dr

Telemark Trl

Jackson St

Boulder L
n

Alpine

Cromwell Ct

Oslo Run

Run

Castle
Cir

Trysil A
lley South

Trysil A
lley North

B. VICINITY MAP
Excerpt from the City of Stoughton’s 
Zoning Map.



4 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan

C. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT WRITTEN DESCRIPTION

Project Area and Existing Conditions 
This planned development establishes the zoning 
requirements for duplex lots in a 37.25-acre single- 
and two-family residential neighborhood located in 
the south-central limits of the City of Stoughton – just 
north of Aaker Road and west of 4th Street (Taylor 
Lane), to be known as Magnolia Springs Subdivision. 

The project area includes two city parcels 
(051108396602 and 051108494000). Currently, both 
parcels are being farmed with a pocket of woodlands 
around the wetland in the northeast section of the 
development.

The surrounding uses to the proposed project are as 
follows:
• North: wetlands, single-family neighborhood, 

and planned duplex lots along Isham Street ex-
tension.

• West: rural residential 
• South: rural residential and farmland.
• East: rural residential, river, wetlands, and flood-

plain

Project Scope  
ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC is proud to sub-
mit this concept for a 37.25-acre single- and two-fam-
ily residential neighborhood with 104 lots (plus, four 
outlots). There are 62 single-family lots (averaging 
6,600 square feet on interior lots and 8,500 square 
feet along edges of the development), 28 zero lo-
tline “twin-house” lots (roughly 5,000 to 6,000 square 
feet), and 14 duplex lots (ranging from 10,000 square 
feet to 12,000 square feet).  

The intent of the proposed project is to provide af-
fordably priced homes in a well-designed neighbor-
hood with good vehicular and pedestrian connec-
tions through and within the development.  Some 
of the key design choices that minimized the overall 
construction costs included 
• A range of smaller single-family lot sizes that do 

not require rear-loaded home design (and an al-
leyway).

• Duplex lots that fit into the single-family neigh-
borhood.  

• Filling the site to allow for gravity sanitary service, 

mitigating the need for a lift station that would 
have a substantial upfront cost to construct, as 
well as future maintenance needs.  

• Central boulevard on Page Street has been re-
designed to manage an open swale to allow a 
substantial stormwater watershed from the south 
to convey through the site.

General Relationship to the 
2017 Comprehensive Plan
The proposed subdivision is located in an area des-
ignated as the South Planned Neighborhood Area, 
which is intended for a carefully planned mixture of 
predominantly single-family residential development, 
combined with one or more of the following land use 
categories: 

• Two Family Residential, Multi-Family Residential, 
Neighborhood Office, Neighborhood Business, In-
stitutional, and Recreation or Public Open Space. 
This category is intended to accommodate both 
conventional and Traditional Neighborhood De-
sign (TND) forms of “full-service” neighborhood 
development. To implement a key City objective, 
development within these neighborhoods should 
contain a minimum of 65 percent single fami-
ly dwelling units, a maximum of 15 percent two 
family and/or townhomes, and a maximum of 20 
percent multi-family dwellings.

PD Zoning Rationale & Exemptions
The Planned Development (PD) classification will al-
low for density that supports more affordable homes/
lots, requiring smaller lots with reduced setbacks. 
While the developer has been able to provide  sin-
gle-family home designs to meet SR-5 and SR-6 lots, 
the duplex footrprints cannot fit per the TR-6 rear set-
back requirement.

Through this GDP, the developer is requesting ex-
emptions, allowing for reduced rear setback min-
mums for the duplex (or zero lotline twin-home) lots, 
as outlined below. This will allow the developer to 
maintain a uniform minimum setback following the 
SR-6 requirement, while allowing for building place-
ment that holds the street edges.



5City of Stoughton, Wisconsin

PD Lots (per Figure 1): Lots 1-18, 32, 43-44, 59-60, 
66-71, 75-82, 94-97, and 104.

PD Min. Rear Setback Request:  20 feet
 For reference:
 TR-6 Min. Rear Setback:  30 feet
 SR-6 Min. Rear Setback: 20 Feet

PD lots will follow all other TR-6 zoning requirements 
and other City regulations.  This includes potentially 
building single-family homes on PD lots, or subdiving 
the duplex lots to provide twin-homes.

This request is necessary to achieve marketable du-
plexes on narrow lots with affordable pricing.  To fur-
ther that goal, Eldon Land Development, LLC also 

requests exemption from a Specific Implementation 
Plan (SIP) review.  Eldon Land Development, LLC 
has submitted engineering drawings for Phase 1, 
which includes half of the PD lots.  These lots will 
be built by Spring/Summer 2024.  The developer has 
also submitted preliminary engineering drawings for 
the remainder of the neighborhood as part of the Ur-
ban Service Area amendment. 

Relationship to Nearby Properties
The general development concept site plan (Figure 1 
above) depicts the entire planned residential neigh-
borhood with parks and open spaces. The develop-
ment includes a blend of single-family and twinhome/
duplex lots. The duplex/twinhome lots are located 

FIGURE 1.  Magnolia Springs Neighborhood & Requested Zoning

OUTLOT 3

OUTLOT 1

OUTLOT 2

OUTLOT 4

60’ ROW

77

60’ ROW

2 1

77777777788888888
77777777999999998808888182222

35 468 7911 1012

70 71696867
66

13
14

15
16

1718 62 616364

57 5856

65

605953 5452 55

46 4547 4450 4951 48

19

20
21

22

23
24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

40 4139 434238
37

36 35 34 3233

101

97 98 10099

102
103

104

8833833 88448844 88555558855555555 8866886666666666 88888888887777777777
888888888888

8899
9900

9911

992
99339999949999959999999996

7777777667766
777777755555
77447744

77227722
7733

SWM

SWM

SUBDIVISION CONCEPT

wetland

AAAAAAaAAAaaAaAaAAaAaaaAAAAAAaaaAAAAaaaAaAaAAAAAaaakkkkkkkkkkkkkekkekeekeekekekekkekekeeeekkkekekkkkerrrr r rrrrrrrr RdRdRdRdRdRddRRRRRddRdRdRdRdRdRRRRddddRRdRdRdRdRRRdd

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
44444444444444444ththththththththhthththththththhh  StStStStStStSStSSStStStStStStStSSSt

StStStStStStttSSSS
S SS SSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

PPPPPPPPPPPPPPa
gagagagagggaggggagggggggggaaaaaaaa

eeeeeeeee
SSS

IsIssIsIsIssIsshahhahahahhhhhahahahhhahahhhahaaaammmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSttttttttttttttttttt

ClClClCCClCCCClCC ovovovovovovoovovovo ererererrereeeeeererrereer LLLLLLLLLLLnnnnnnnn

OrOrOrOrOOrOOOrOrOrchchchchhchchchchchchhididididdddddddd AAAAAAAAAAAvevevevevevveveenununununununnuununuueeeeeeeee

WiWiWiWiWiWWWiWWWWiWWWW ldldldldddddd RRRRRRRRRRRRRosososososososossooo e e eeeeeeeeee WaWaWaWaWaWaWaWaWWaaaayyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy

DaDaDaDDaDDDaDaDaDaDaDaD hlhlhlhlhhlhlhhlllhlhliiiiii DrDrDrDrDDrDrDrDrDrDaDaDahlhlhllii i DrDrDrr

60’ ROW

15
6’

 R
O

W

81’ ROW

(pr(pr(prpr(pr(pr(p ovioviovioviooovoovidindinddinndidinnding ag ag ag agg ag ag ag addiddddiddiddd iddd tiotiotioitiotioottitiot nalnalnalnalnaallnallnana 151515155115151515’ ttt’ t’ t’ ttt RRo Ro Ro Ro Ro Roo Rooooo Ro OW)OW)OW)OW)WW)OWOOW)W))OW)W)

10’ Trail

60’ ROW

60’ ROW

60’ ROW

60’ ROW

104 Lots (118 Units)
28 Twinhome Lots (28 U)
14 Duplex Lots (28 U)
62 Single-Family Lots
4.12 Acres Parkland Dedication (no SWM / wetland)

Lilac Lane



6 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan

along the primary routes into the neighborhood (i.e., 
Page Street, Orchid Avenue and backing up to Aak-
er Road), as well as a pocket area directly south of 
planned twinhome lots along Isham Street extension. 
Forty-two of the single-family lots are located west 
side of Page Street with the remaining twenty on the 
east side of Page Street 
 
Project Timing and Phasing
The project will be broken in 2-3 phases.  Phase 1 
includes lots abutting Lilac Lane, Orchid Avenue (west 
of Page Street) and Page Street (north of Orchid Ave-
nue). Construction on this phase is planned to begin in 
2023 with homes completed in Spring/Summer 2024.

Phase 1A will build Orchid Avenue to 4th Street, wet 
pond in Outlot 3, and the trail from Orchid Avenue to 
Isham Street. These improvements, as well as the du-
plex lots along Orchid Avenue, will be completed no 
later than Fall 2025 per the development agreement.  
It is very likely the remainder of the neighborhood will 
be built as part of Phase 1A. The intent is to have a 
fully built neighborhood by the end of 2025.

Neighborhood Character/Theme
Magnolia Springs subdivision will include single family, 
twin-homes, and duplexes buildings. 

Stormwater Management
There are two wet ponds for pre-treatment, one infil-
tration basin, and a swale median that will serve this 
development and manage off-site runoff.  The storm-
water management system is intended to control peak 
runoff rates and volumes for events ranging from the 
1-year through the 200-year event.  

A large off-site sub-watershed will convey through the 
site through a central median swale on Page Street 
at a depth of 10 feet with a 6-foot safety shelf behind 
the curb and 4:1 slopes to “V” bottom that will carry 
off-site water.  There are also ditches planned on the 
north side of Aaker Road on both sides of intersection 
with Page Street to carry overflow stormwater to the 
central swale median. We will work with the City staff 
during the entitlement process to identify the preferred 
landscaping treatment that allows for minimal mainte-
nance on annual basis.  

Natural Area & Open Space 
Natural Features 
Outlot 2 preserves (to the extent possible) woodlands 
around an existing wetland. A proposed trail corridor 
runs through the park and extends into Outlot 1, pro-
viding access west and to the north. 

Park/Open Space
Parks and Recreation Committee approved the park 
locations with interest in seeing the development meet 
the parkland dedication requirement and space for up 
to a 9,000 square foot playground. The development 
meets the parkland dedication requirement (i.e., 3.98 
acres required based on 118 units with 4.12 acres pro-
vided, excludes wetland and stormwater management 
areas in the park). The design of the park preserves 
the existing wetland and trees adjacent to the wetland 
outside of grading for roads and stormwater manage-
ment areas.  

Utilities
MSA is coordinating the water and sewer service with 
Stoughton Utilties.  The design required filling the 
center of the site to allow for gravity flow to the north, 
connecting to the existing sewer along Page Street 
near Isham Street.  A stubbed connection is shown to 
Aaker Road, understanding any future development 

Single-Family

Twin-homes



7City of Stoughton, Wisconsin

south will require a lift station and force main up to 
Dahli Drive along Page Street.  Water is looped in 
several sections within the development, including a 
stub to Aaker Road and through Outlot 1 to Isham 
Street. The developer will also upgrade approximate 
650-foot segment of 6-inch sewer interceptor in S. 
Page Street (W. Chicago Street to W. Broadway St.) 
to an 8-inch to accommodate the proposed Magnolia 
Springs Development.

Transportation
Streets
The neighborhood provides connections to the exist-
ing roadways at Page/Isham, Page/Aaker and Orchid 
Avenue / 4th (Taylor). Orchid Avenue is extended to 
the western edge of the development, providing for a 
future fourth access to the neighborhood. 

Wild Rose Way does not cross the swale median 
due to complications in slope and other factors with 
close proximity to other breaks in the central swale 
median; however, a mid-block sidewalk will be built 
between Wild Rose Way and Orchid Avenue.  

The eyebrow street in the southeast corner of the 
development includes a median (dedicated as right-
of-way), which provides access to three single-family 
lots and potentially one of the duplex units (Lot 94).  
Per discussions with City staff, sidewalk will only be 
built along the lot frontages (and not within the medi-
an). The eyebrow median will include low maintain-
ance landascaping while also being asethetic pleas-
ing.  As shown in the exhibit in the upper right, there 
will be shrub plantings outside of the planned utili-
ties with wood mulch in the center and gravel mulch 
along the edges.

There are three right-of-way (ROW) widths provid-
ed in the neighborhood based on the corresponding 
land uses and function of the roadway, as follows:

• 66-foot ROW: Lilac Lane and Orchid Avenue 
(east of Page Street)

• 60-foot ROW: Orchid Avenue (west of Page 
Street), Wild Rose Way, and Dahli Drive 

• 156-foot ROW: Page Street (south of Orchid Av-
enue), inclusive central swale median

Pedestrian Connections
All streets will have pedestrian accommodations 
(sidewalk or path) along both sides of the street with 
a grass terrace of varying widths (typically 7-8 feet 
wide).  One exception is along Dahli Drive crossing 
of the median where sidewalk will be installed only 
on the north side of the street. A mid-block sidewalk 
will be installed between Wild Rose Way and Orchid 
Avenue. 

Paved multi-use paths will be built along 4th Street 
(Taylor Lane) from Isham Street to Orchid Avenue, 
through the park, and within a 40-ft trail corridor* (in 
Outlot 1) to the northwestern corner of the develop-
ment. A trail connection will also connect the trail in 
Outlot 1 to Clover Lane.

* The trail corridor utilizes a 12-foot utility easement north of the 
development to meet the desired 50 feet of wildlife corridor width.  
The lot depths are near minimums to allow for homes without an 
alley, providing for affordable lots. Any further reduction of depth 
(to increase the trail corridor) would make it unfeasible to provide 
the number of affordable lots as shown.  

Management and Maintenance
The on-going management and maintenance of ar-
eas within private lot boundaries will be the respon-
sibility of site owners. Maintenance, care, upkeep, 
snow removal, etc. of sidewalks within the public 
right of way will be the responsibility of adjacent land-
owner, including the mid-block sidewalk (likely only 

© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

www.msa-ps.com

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH

ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC
STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN

PROJECT NO.

21669000
SHEET

L4

   DRAWN BY:            EMW

   DESIGNED BY:       EMW

   CHECKED BY:        LJG
LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT.

  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg

  PROJECT DATE: .

NO. REVISION BY
. .

. .

. .

DATE

.

.

.

.

.

.

LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - L4

(3) GIN AUT

(3) CEL PRA

(2) QUE MUE

(2) SYR IVO(1) LIR TUL

Feet

80400

DECIDUOUS TREES CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

CEL PRA CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS 'PRAIRIE PRIDE' PRAIRIE PRIDE HACKBERRY 2" CAL. B&B 22

COR COL CORYLUS COLURNA TURKISH FILBERT 6` HT. B&B 13

GIN AUT GINKGO BILOBA `AUTUMN GOLD` TM MAIDENHAIR TREE 2" CAL. B&B 49

GYM DIO GYMNOCLADUS DIOICA `ESPRESSO` KENTUCKY COFFEETREE 1.5" CAL. B&B 15

LIR TUL LIRIODENDRON TULIPIFERA TULIP POPLAR 2" CAL. B&B 12

PLA ACE PLATANUS X ACERIFOLIA 'MORTON CIRCLE' EXCLAMATION!™ LONDON PLANE TREE 2" CAL. B&B 19

QUE MUE QUERCUS MUEHLENBERGII CHINKAPIN OAK 2" CAL. B&B 16

ULM AME ULMUS `MORTON` ACCOLADE ELM 2" CAL. B&B 18

ZEL SER ZELKOVA SERRATA JAPANESE ZELKOVA 6` HT. B&B 13

ORNAMENTAL CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

SYR IVO SYRINGA RETICULATA `IVORY SILK` IVORY SILK JAPANESE TREE LILAC 4` HT. B&B 20

SHRUBS CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

Am ARONIA MELANOCARPA 'MORTON' IROQUOIS BEAUTY™ BLACK CHOKEBERRY #2 CONT. CONT. 11

Cf CORNUS SERICEA `FARROW` ARCTIC FIRE® RED TWIG DOGWOOD #3 CONT. CONT. 13

Vl VIBURNUM LENTAGO NANNYBERRY VIBURNUM #3 CONT. CONT. 14

(1) GYM DIO

(3) ULM AME

(1) ZEL SER

(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704

LEGEND

BIOSWALE SEED MIX

PROPOSED WOOD MULCH

PROPOSED WET BASIN

PROPOSED DRY BASIN

(5) Vl

(2) COR COL

(3) Cf

PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)

LIR TUL

MEDIAN ENLARGEMENT

(5) Am

(5) Am

(3) Cf

Eyebrow  Median Landscaping



8 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan

the lot owners on one side of the outlot).  Improve-
ments in dedicated right-of-way and outlots (inclusive 
of trails, utilities, roadway, stormwater basins, etc.) 
will be the responsibility of the City of Stoughton and 
Stoughton Utilties once dedication has been accept-
ed. A Developer’s Agreement will be negotiated with 
the City to establish the assignment of these respon-
sibilities. 



Appendix: 1City of Stoughton, Wisconsin

Appendix: 

Map with Owners within 300 feet (P.3)

Street Tree Plan (P.4-9) - Informational Only

General Development Plan (GDP)

Magnolia Spring Magnolia Spring 
NeighborhoodNeighborhood



Appendix: 2 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan

(PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK)



Appendix: 3City of Stoughton, Wisconsin

Properties within 300 feet

Taylor
Ln

Aaker Rd

S
 P

a
ge

 S
t

S
Fo

ur
th

St

Aspen Rd

Taylor
Ln

Isham St

Aaker Rd

MARTIN W
LAMERS

REEVES REV
TR, RANEY E

JR & SHARON A
REEVES REV TR,

RANEY E JR
& SHARON A

ADAM RINCKEY

LARRY L
SCHAUFF

STOUGHTON,
CITY OF

DIANE L
KIRBY

SHERRY
L LEICK

ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE AND

BUILDERS LLC
KAREN J

DROGSVOLD

KAREN M
GERMANN

ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC

KENDALL L
GULSETH

GREGORY JM
ONSAGER

GREGORY JM
ONSAGER

ANITA C
HALVERSON

MARY V
ONSAGER

RONALD
WALTER WICK

MICHAEL P
KURTINITIS

DEBORAH E
LAURENCE

RONALD
L BUSS

DELORES M
JOHNSONJAMES M FRAME

SEGEBRECHT
FARMS LLC

WARREN H
BREWSTER

JAMES D
GANSHERTDEBRA HUGHES

DEBRA HUGHES
WILLIAM

M BREUCH
DAVID E

RICE
ROBERT
A NIBLO

TIMOTHY
KLONGLAND

KLONGLAND
LIVING TR,

KENT J

DALE
TEIGENSHERRY

L LEICK

ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC

ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC

ARLIN O
TEIGEN

DARRYL G
WIENEKE

RUBEN
GONZALEZ

SEGEBRECHT
FARMS LLC

Site Buffer (300-ft)
Site Boundary
Parcels Within 300-ft

0 100 200 Feet

Pr
int

ed
 By

: s
m

or
ris

on
, F

ile
: \

\m
sa

-p
s.c

om
\fs

\P
ro

jec
t\2

1\
21

66
9\

21
66

90
00

\G
IS\

8_
Pr

o_
Ho

str
aw

se
r_D

ev
elo

pm
en

t_S
to

rm
wa

te
r.a

pr
x

Pr
int

 D
ate

: 4
/1

0/
20

23

Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)

Dane County Aerial (2022)

City of Stoughton
Dane County, Wisconsin

Magnolia Springs Subdivision

Current Property
Owners

Taylor
Ln

Aaker Rd

S
 P

a
ge

 S
t

S
Fo

ur
th

St

Aspen Rd

Taylor
Ln

Isham St

Aaker Rd

MARTIN W
LAMERS

REEVES REV
TR, RANEY E

JR & SHARON A
REEVES REV TR,

RANEY E JR
& SHARON A

ADAM RINCKEY

LARRY L
SCHAUFF

STOUGHTON,
CITY OF

DIANE L
KIRBY

SHERRY
L LEICK

ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE AND

BUILDERS LLC
KAREN J

DROGSVOLD

KAREN M
GERMANN

ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC

KENDALL L
GULSETH

GREGORY JM
ONSAGER

GREGORY JM
ONSAGER

ANITA C
HALVERSON

MARY V
ONSAGER

RONALD
WALTER WICK

MICHAEL P
KURTINITIS

DEBORAH E
LAURENCE

RONALD
L BUSS

DELORES M
JOHNSONJAMES M FRAME

SEGEBRECHT
FARMS LLC

WARREN H
BREWSTER

JAMES D
GANSHERTDEBRA HUGHES

DEBRA HUGHES
WILLIAM

M BREUCH
DAVID E

RICE
ROBERT
A NIBLO

TIMOTHY
KLONGLAND

KLONGLAND
LIVING TR,

KENT J

DALE
TEIGENSHERRY

L LEICK

ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC

ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC

ARLIN O
TEIGEN

DARRYL G
WIENEKE

RUBEN
GONZALEZ

SEGEBRECHT
FARMS LLC

Site Buffer (300-ft)
Site Boundary
Parcels Within 300-ft

0 100 200 Feet

Pr
int

ed
 By

: s
m

or
ris

on
, F

ile
: \

\m
sa

-p
s.c

om
\fs

\P
ro

jec
t\2

1\
21

66
9\

21
66

90
00

\G
IS\

8_
Pr

o_
Ho

str
aw

se
r_D

ev
elo

pm
en

t_S
to

rm
wa

te
r.a

pr
x

Pr
int

 D
ate

: 4
/1

0/
20

23

Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)

Dane County Aerial (2022)

City of Stoughton
Dane County, Wisconsin

Magnolia Springs Subdivision

Current Property
Owners

Taylor
Ln

Aaker Rd

S
 P

a
ge

 S
t

S
Fo

ur
th

St

Aspen Rd

Taylor
Ln

Isham St

Aaker Rd

MARTIN W
LAMERS

REEVES REV
TR, RANEY E

JR & SHARON A
REEVES REV TR,

RANEY E JR
& SHARON A

ADAM RINCKEY

LARRY L
SCHAUFF

STOUGHTON,
CITY OF

DIANE L
KIRBY

SHERRY
L LEICK

ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE AND

BUILDERS LLC
KAREN J

DROGSVOLD

KAREN M
GERMANN

ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC

KENDALL L
GULSETH

GREGORY JM
ONSAGER

GREGORY JM
ONSAGER

ANITA C
HALVERSON

MARY V
ONSAGER

RONALD
WALTER WICK

MICHAEL P
KURTINITIS

DEBORAH E
LAURENCE

RONALD
L BUSS

DELORES M
JOHNSONJAMES M FRAME

SEGEBRECHT
FARMS LLC

WARREN H
BREWSTER

JAMES D
GANSHERTDEBRA HUGHES

DEBRA HUGHES
WILLIAM

M BREUCH
DAVID E

RICE
ROBERT
A NIBLO

TIMOTHY
KLONGLAND

KLONGLAND
LIVING TR,

KENT J

DALE
TEIGENSHERRY

L LEICK

ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC

ROB REAL ESTATE
BROKERAGE &
BUILDERS LLC

ARLIN O
TEIGEN

DARRYL G
WIENEKE

RUBEN
GONZALEZ

SEGEBRECHT
FARMS LLC

Site Buffer (300-ft)
Site Boundary
Parcels Within 300-ft

0 100 200 Feet

Pr
int

ed
 By

: s
m

or
ris

on
, F

ile
: \

\m
sa

-p
s.c

om
\fs

\P
ro

jec
t\2

1\
21

66
9\

21
66

90
00

\G
IS\

8_
Pr

o_
Ho

str
aw

se
r_D

ev
elo

pm
en

t_S
to

rm
wa

te
r.a

pr
x

Pr
int

 D
ate

: 4
/1

0/
20

23

Data Sources:
Dane County GIS (2023)

Dane County Aerial (2022)

City of Stoughton
Dane County, Wisconsin

Magnolia Springs Subdivision

Current Property
Owners



Appendix: 4 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan

HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH
ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC

STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN

PROJECT NO.

21669000
SHEET

L1
OVERALL LANDSCAPE.

  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg

  PROJECT DATE: .

NO. REVISION BY
. .

. .

. .

DATE

.

.

.

.

.

.

ISHAM ST.

LILAC LANE

ORCHID ANENUE

WILLOW WAY

DAHLIA DRIVE

AAKER RD.

Feet

160800

PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)

LEGEND

BIOSWALE SEED MIX

LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - SEE L3

LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - SEE L4

LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - SEE L2

NOTES: (NOTES APPLY TO SHEETS L1-L4)

1. BIOSWALE SEED MIX TO BE " DETENTION BASIN -
BIOSWALE" SEED MIX FROM "PRAIRIE NURSERY"
OR EQUIVALENT.

2. ALL WOOD MULCH TO BE DOUBLE SHREDDED
HARDWOOD MULCH.

3. ALL TREES TO BE PLANTED A MINIMUM 10-FEET
FROM ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

4. NO TREES SHALL BE PLANTED WITHIN VISION
TRIANGLES AS NOTED IN THE CITY OF
STOUGHTON ORDINANCES AND SPECIFICATIONS.

   DRAWN BY:            EMW

   DESIGNED BY:       EMW

   CHECKED BY:        LG
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL

                               www.msa-ps.com

4TH ST

S PAG
E ST.

PROPOSED WOOD MULCH

(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704

PROPOSED WET BASIN

PROPOSED DRY BASIN

MEDIAN ENLARGEMENT - SEE L4

LANDSCAPING PLAN
 - Informational Only



Appendix: 5City of Stoughton, Wisconsin

HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH
ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC

STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN

PROJECT NO.

21669000
SHEET

L1
OVERALL LANDSCAPE.

  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg

  PROJECT DATE: .

NO. REVISION BY
. .

. .

. .

DATE

.

.

.

.

.

.

ISHAM ST.

LILAC LANE

ORCHID ANENUE

WILLOW WAY

DAHLIA DRIVE

AAKER RD.

Feet

160800

PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)

LEGEND

BIOSWALE SEED MIX

LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - SEE L3

LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - SEE L4

LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - SEE L2

NOTES: (NOTES APPLY TO SHEETS L1-L4)

1. BIOSWALE SEED MIX TO BE " DETENTION BASIN -
BIOSWALE" SEED MIX FROM "PRAIRIE NURSERY"
OR EQUIVALENT.

2. ALL WOOD MULCH TO BE DOUBLE SHREDDED
HARDWOOD MULCH.

3. ALL TREES TO BE PLANTED A MINIMUM 10-FEET
FROM ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

4. NO TREES SHALL BE PLANTED WITHIN VISION
TRIANGLES AS NOTED IN THE CITY OF
STOUGHTON ORDINANCES AND SPECIFICATIONS.

   DRAWN BY:            EMW

   DESIGNED BY:       EMW

   CHECKED BY:        LG
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL

                               www.msa-ps.com

4TH ST

S PAG
E ST.

PROPOSED WOOD MULCH

(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704

PROPOSED WET BASIN

PROPOSED DRY BASIN

MEDIAN ENLARGEMENT - SEE L4

LANDSCAPING PLAN



Appendix: 6 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan

HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH
ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC

STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN

PROJECT NO.

21669000
SHEET

L2
LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT.

  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg

  PROJECT DATE: .

NO. REVISION BY
. .

. .

. .

DATE

.

.

.

.

.

.

LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - L2

(2) GIN AUT

(1) GYM DIO

(1) GYM DIO

(1) CEL PRA

(2) QUE MUE

(8) SYR IVO

(2) PLA ACE (2) GIN AUT

(2) GIN AUT

(1) CEL PRA

(2) SYR IVO

   DRAWN BY:            EMW

   DESIGNED BY:       EMW

   CHECKED BY:        LG
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL

                               www.msa-ps.com

Feet

80400

(1) GYM DIO

(1) GIN AUT

(1) ZEL SER (1) PLA ACE

(1) QUE MUE

(1) ZEL SER

(1) COR COL

(2) PLA ACE

(1) GYM DIO

(3) PLA ACE

(2) GIN AUT
(3) ULM AME

(2) GYM DIO

(2) QUE MUE(1) COR COL
(2) ZEL SER

(3) GIN AUT

(2) CEL PRA(2) ULM AME

(2) GIN AUT

(1) LIR TUL

(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704

(2) COR COL
(2) ULM AME

(2) CEL PRA

LEGEND

BIOSWALE SEED MIX

PROPOSED WOOD MULCH

PROPOSED WET BASIN

PROPOSED DRY BASIN

(1) QUE MUE
(2) CEL PRA

(2) GYM DIO

(2) QUE MUE

(3) Vl

(3) Cf

(4) Cf

(3) Vl

(3) Vl

PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)

LANDSCAPING PLAN - PHASE 1
 - Informational Only



Appendix: 7City of Stoughton, Wisconsin

HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH
ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC

STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN

PROJECT NO.

21669000
SHEET

L2
LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT.

  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg

  PROJECT DATE: .

NO. REVISION BY
. .

. .

. .

DATE

.

.

.

.

.

.

LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - L2

(2) GIN AUT

(1) GYM DIO

(1) GYM DIO

(1) CEL PRA

(2) QUE MUE

(8) SYR IVO

(2) PLA ACE (2) GIN AUT

(2) GIN AUT

(1) CEL PRA

(2) SYR IVO

   DRAWN BY:            EMW

   DESIGNED BY:       EMW

   CHECKED BY:        LG
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL

                               www.msa-ps.com

Feet

80400

(1) GYM DIO

(1) GIN AUT

(1) ZEL SER (1) PLA ACE

(1) QUE MUE

(1) ZEL SER

(1) COR COL

(2) PLA ACE

(1) GYM DIO

(3) PLA ACE

(2) GIN AUT
(3) ULM AME

(2) GYM DIO

(2) QUE MUE(1) COR COL
(2) ZEL SER

(3) GIN AUT

(2) CEL PRA(2) ULM AME

(2) GIN AUT

(1) LIR TUL

(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704

(2) COR COL
(2) ULM AME

(2) CEL PRA

LEGEND

BIOSWALE SEED MIX

PROPOSED WOOD MULCH

PROPOSED WET BASIN

PROPOSED DRY BASIN

(1) QUE MUE
(2) CEL PRA

(2) GYM DIO

(2) QUE MUE

(3) Vl

(3) Cf

(4) Cf

(3) Vl

(3) Vl

PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)

LANDSCAPING PLAN - PHASE 1



Appendix: 8 Magnolia Spring Neighborhood: General Development Plan

© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

www.msa-ps.com

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH

ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC
STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN

PROJECT NO.

21669000
SHEET

L4

   DRAWN BY:            EMW

   DESIGNED BY:       EMW

   CHECKED BY:        LJG
LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT.

  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg

  PROJECT DATE: .

NO. REVISION BY
. .

. .

. .

DATE

.

.

.

.

.

.

LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - L4

(3) GIN AUT

(3) CEL PRA

(2) QUE MUE

(2) SYR IVO(1) LIR TUL

Feet

80400

DECIDUOUS TREES CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

CEL PRA CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS 'PRAIRIE PRIDE' PRAIRIE PRIDE HACKBERRY 2" CAL. B&B 22

COR COL CORYLUS COLURNA TURKISH FILBERT 6` HT. B&B 13

GIN AUT GINKGO BILOBA `AUTUMN GOLD` TM MAIDENHAIR TREE 2" CAL. B&B 49

GYM DIO GYMNOCLADUS DIOICA `ESPRESSO` KENTUCKY COFFEETREE 1.5" CAL. B&B 15

LIR TUL LIRIODENDRON TULIPIFERA TULIP POPLAR 2" CAL. B&B 12

PLA ACE PLATANUS X ACERIFOLIA 'MORTON CIRCLE' EXCLAMATION!™ LONDON PLANE TREE 2" CAL. B&B 19

QUE MUE QUERCUS MUEHLENBERGII CHINKAPIN OAK 2" CAL. B&B 16

ULM AME ULMUS `MORTON` ACCOLADE ELM 2" CAL. B&B 18

ZEL SER ZELKOVA SERRATA JAPANESE ZELKOVA 6` HT. B&B 13

ORNAMENTAL CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

SYR IVO SYRINGA RETICULATA `IVORY SILK` IVORY SILK JAPANESE TREE LILAC 4` HT. B&B 20

SHRUBS CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

Am ARONIA MELANOCARPA 'MORTON' IROQUOIS BEAUTY™ BLACK CHOKEBERRY #2 CONT. CONT. 11

Cf CORNUS SERICEA `FARROW` ARCTIC FIRE® RED TWIG DOGWOOD #3 CONT. CONT. 13

Vl VIBURNUM LENTAGO NANNYBERRY VIBURNUM #3 CONT. CONT. 14

(1) GYM DIO

(3) ULM AME

(1) ZEL SER

(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704

LEGEND

BIOSWALE SEED MIX

PROPOSED WOOD MULCH

PROPOSED WET BASIN

PROPOSED DRY BASIN

(5) Vl

(2) COR COL

(3) Cf

PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)

LIR TUL

MEDIAN ENLARGEMENT

(5) Am

(5) Am

(3) Cf

LANDSCAPING PLAN - ENLARGEMENTS
 - Informational Only



Appendix: 9City of Stoughton, Wisconsin

© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

www.msa-ps.com

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL HOSTRAWSER DEVELOPMENT - AAKER/4TH

ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC
STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN

PROJECT NO.

21669000
SHEET

L4

   DRAWN BY:            EMW

   DESIGNED BY:       EMW

   CHECKED BY:        LJG
LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT.

  PLOT DATE: 4/10/2023 12:17 PM, G:\21\21669\21669000\CADD\Construction Documents\21669000 Landscape.dwg

  PROJECT DATE: .

NO. REVISION BY
. .

. .

. .

DATE

.

.

.

.

.

.

LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT - L4

(3) GIN AUT

(3) CEL PRA

(2) QUE MUE

(2) SYR IVO(1) LIR TUL

Feet

80400

DECIDUOUS TREES CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

CEL PRA CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS 'PRAIRIE PRIDE' PRAIRIE PRIDE HACKBERRY 2" CAL. B&B 22

COR COL CORYLUS COLURNA TURKISH FILBERT 6` HT. B&B 13

GIN AUT GINKGO BILOBA `AUTUMN GOLD` TM MAIDENHAIR TREE 2" CAL. B&B 49

GYM DIO GYMNOCLADUS DIOICA `ESPRESSO` KENTUCKY COFFEETREE 1.5" CAL. B&B 15

LIR TUL LIRIODENDRON TULIPIFERA TULIP POPLAR 2" CAL. B&B 12

PLA ACE PLATANUS X ACERIFOLIA 'MORTON CIRCLE' EXCLAMATION!™ LONDON PLANE TREE 2" CAL. B&B 19

QUE MUE QUERCUS MUEHLENBERGII CHINKAPIN OAK 2" CAL. B&B 16

ULM AME ULMUS `MORTON` ACCOLADE ELM 2" CAL. B&B 18

ZEL SER ZELKOVA SERRATA JAPANESE ZELKOVA 6` HT. B&B 13

ORNAMENTAL CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

SYR IVO SYRINGA RETICULATA `IVORY SILK` IVORY SILK JAPANESE TREE LILAC 4` HT. B&B 20

SHRUBS CODE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

Am ARONIA MELANOCARPA 'MORTON' IROQUOIS BEAUTY™ BLACK CHOKEBERRY #2 CONT. CONT. 11

Cf CORNUS SERICEA `FARROW` ARCTIC FIRE® RED TWIG DOGWOOD #3 CONT. CONT. 13

Vl VIBURNUM LENTAGO NANNYBERRY VIBURNUM #3 CONT. CONT. 14

(1) GYM DIO

(3) ULM AME

(1) ZEL SER

(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704

LEGEND

BIOSWALE SEED MIX

PROPOSED WOOD MULCH

PROPOSED WET BASIN

PROPOSED DRY BASIN

(5) Vl

(2) COR COL

(3) Cf

PROPOSED PLAYGROUND
(by others)

LIR TUL

MEDIAN ENLARGEMENT

(5) Am

(5) Am

(3) Cf

LANDSCAPING PLAN - ENLARGEMENTS



Tee Naasak Park
Master Plan DRAFT

Stoughton, WI
September 2023

                            

SCALE
0 40’ 80’ 160’

PUMP 
TRACK

PLAYGROUND

SHELTER + RESTROOMS

JACKSON STREET

OAK OPENING DRIVE

ALPINE RUN

TRYSIL ALLEY SOUTH

ANGLED PARKING LOT
(16 Stalls - 1 ADA)

BIKE PARK SKILLS AREA
Future Phase

SLEDDING 
HILL

MULTI-PURPOSE 
GREEN SPACE

PRAIRIE PLANTINGS/STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT AREAS

BENCH OVERLOOK

ADDITIONAL PARK 
DEDICATION (TBD)

Future Trail Connection 
to Hwy 138

Trail Connection to 
Jackson Street

Future Trail Connection

WOODLAND WALKING PATH
(WIDENED SINGLE TRACK BIKE PATH)

Planted Buffer

Maintenance 
Shed

PU
M

P 
TR

A
CK

PL
AY

G
RO

U
N

D
SP

O
RT

 C
O

U
RT

SPORT COURT

WOODED GREEN SPACE



Tee Naasak Park Master Plan Report

SEPTEMBER 2023

PREPaREd By:

DRAFT



2 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

PrePared for the City of Stoughton

CiTy of SToughTon PaRkS and RECREaTion CoMMiTTEE

  Joyce Tikalsky, District 1 Alder, Chair
 Phil Caravello, District 2 Alder, Vice Chair 
 Regina Hirsch, District 3 Alder, 
 Frank Raff, District 4 Alder
 Jim Brandt, Citizen Member 
 Ethan Scheiwe, Citizen Member
 Tim Swadley, Mayor 

CiTy of SToughTon PaRkS STaff
 Dan Glynn, Director of Parks and Recreation  
 

CiTy of SToughTon govERnMEnT

 Tim Swadley, Mayor
 Brett Schmacher, District 1 Alder
 Rachel Venegas, District 1 Alder
 Joyce Tikalsky, District 1 Alder
 Phil Caravello, District 2 Alder
 Jean Ligocki, District 2 Alder
 Lisa Reeves, District 2 Alder
 Regina Hirsch, District 3 Alder, Council President
 Greg Jenson, District 3 Alder, Council Vice President
 Tom Majewski, District 3 Alder
 Ben Heili, District 4 Alder
 Frank Raff, District 4 Alder
 Fred Hundt, District 4 Alder

PREPaREd By:
 MSA Professional Services, Inc.
 1702 Pankratz Street
 Madison, WI 53704
 608.242.7779



3

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

TaBlE of ConTEnTS

inTRoduCTion ........................................................................................... 5      
 Project Goals
 Project Context

1.0 invEnToRy and analySiS ............................................................. 8      
 Existing Conditions
 Site Analysis 

2.0 EngagEMEnT .................................................................................... 13      
 Stakeholder Feedback

3.0 PREliMinaRy ConCEPT ................................................................. 15      
 Concept 1
 Concept2
 Public Feedback
 
4.0 MaSTER Plan ................................................................................... 21      
 Character Imagery
 Master Plan

5.0 iMPlEMEnTaTion ............................................................................... 28      
 Cost Estimate
 Phasing

aPPEndix ...................................................................................................... 31      
 Final Master Plan
 Stakeholder Meeting Notes



4 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

TO BE UPDATED UPON ADOPTION



5

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

Introduction



6 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

inTRoduCTion
Tee Naasak Park will be a new neighborhood park 
space that will be developed as part of the Kettle 
Park West residential development. Located on the 
western side of Stoughton, just north of Highway 
138 to Oregon, this park will serve the residents of 
the immediate neighborhood. The existing extents 
of the park make up just under 10 acres of space. As 
the residential development progresses, Tee Naasak 
Park may expand over the typical threshold of a 
neighborhood park (10 acres) and be considered 
a community park. Within this Master Plan 
process, being mindful of potential expansion and 
incorporating program elements that will serve the 
greater community was a critical aspect. 

Tee Naasak is a Ho Chunk phrase meaning “Maple 
Tree Lake”. The City of Stoughton, in coordination 

with Ho Chunk Nation members, dedicated the 
name of this park to the people who originally 
settled and lived in harmony with these lands. The 
design of this park space will aim to restore natural 
and native elements that once flourished here, 
while providing passive activities and elements 
of play. Educational elements about the Tee 
Naasak name and the Ho Chunk tribe should be 
incorporated into the amenities and implementation 
of the park space. 

PRojECT goalS PRojECT goalS 

Four goals were determined at the beginning of the 
project to help guide decisions on design and park 
amenities.

11

22

33

44

The first goal is simple; the park’s first priority is to serve the neighborhood in which it is 
located. Providing the residents with a safe space to engage, play, and enjoy nature. This is 
especially important for some of the residents that will have alley-access and smaller yard 
space as proposed in the development. 

This goal is important as young families may be moving into the neighborhood, and the 
Kettle Park West Senior Living facility is just a block away. Having passive and recreative 
opportunities, and accessibility, for the wide range of potential users will result in a 
successful park and happy community.

The current dedicated parkland is a result of the residential development Phases 1 and 2. 
The development company has planned for future phases to expand the neighborhood 
further west. Additional parkland must be dedicated based on the number of residential 
units that will be constructed. The park master plan should consider options for park 
expansion and phasing based on cost and potential for expansion.

The final goal focuses on the dedication of the name “Tee Naasak” and the original 
inhabitants of the land. By introducing native plantings with educational signage about 
native species, pollinators, and how the Ho Chunk coexisted and sustainably lived off the 
land, this park will spread awareness and knowledge to residents and visitors.

PRovidE nEighBoRhood gREEn SPaCE 

offER aMEniTiES and PRogRaMMing foR PEoPlE of all agES and aBiliTiES 

BE Mindful of PoTEnTial PaRk ExPanSionS and PhaSing 

EMPhaSizE ThE MEaning of ThE PaRk naME and PRovidE EduCaTional 
oPPoRTuniTiES To lEaRn on ho Chunk land



7

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

Figure 0.1: Kettle Park West Phasing Plan (Forward Development Group)

PRojECT ConTExT PRojECT ConTExT    

The previously mentioned Kettle Park West 
development is supplemented by existing 
businesses along Highway 51 including but not 
limited to Walmart, Aldi, and Kwik Trip. Newer 
construction along Jackson Street include the Tru 
by Hilton Hotel and Kettle Park West Senior Living. 
New housing development (single family and  
twinhomes) will extend towards the Tee Naasak 
Park space. The development of these housing 
units is in-progress with the seven parcels on the 
northern border of the park being developed last in 
2025/2026. The implementation of these will also 
come with the connection of Oak Opening Drive to 
Highway 138 to the south. Until then, a temporary 
cul-de-sac/turnaround will be a terminal point on

Oak Opening Drive. Noted on the Forward 
Development Group map (Figure 0.1), a future phase 
is expected to the west. With the additional land 
and housing units that will be developed, more land 
would be required for dedicated park land. The 
expansion of the park space may occur further to 
the west or south, at this time it is unknown.



8 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

1.0 Inventory and Analysis



9

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

invEnToRy and analySiS

ExiSTing CondiTionSExiSTing CondiTionS

The existing site is being utilized by the developers 
as a holding site for additional soil fill from the 
project. It is expected that a majority, if not all, 
of the fill will be relocated and put to use for the 
future road connection to Highway 138 to the 
south. Photos of the existing fill on site can be seen 
in Figures 1.1-1.2. If any of the fill is not used, the 
developers are willing to re-grade the soil in a way 
to assist in the park development. 

The land itself is majority previous farmland (Figure 
1.3). On the southern end of the park, a portion is 
covered in an existing grove/grouping of trees. 
Restoring native plantings, trees, and making open 
green space, will help create natural and shaded 
experiences for park users. 

On the route to the park space along Jackson 
Street, a 10-foot-wide multi-use pedestrian path 
is an extension of the City of Stoughton’s growing 
trail network. This path will be continued along 
Oak Opening Drive and be a crucial pedestrian 
connection to Tee Naasak Park. This will especially 
be useful for neighborhood residents and those at 
the Kettle Park Senior Living center.  

From top to bottom:
Figure 1.1: View from Jackson Street 

towards park land

Figure 1.2: Existing fill materials from 
development on park site

Figure 1.3: View west

Figure 1.4: View from park land to 
Kettle Park West Senior Living facility 



10 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

ALPINE RUN

OAK OPENING DRIVE

JACKSON STREETTRYSIL ALLEY SOUTH

O
AK

 O
PE

N
IN

G
 D

R
IV

E

PLOTTED: Thursday, September 14, 2023 9:26:05 AM,  FROM: G:\09\09360\09360022\CADD\C3D\Basemap.dwg DRAWN BY: Emma Wenman

© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL

                               www.msa-ps.com

TEE NAASAK MASTER PLAN
CITY OF STOUGHTON

KETTLE PARK WEST DEVELOPMENT
BASE MAP

0 2000'

935

93
0

945

930

925

935

93
0

925

93
5

93
0

92
5

945

92
0

950955

960

Figure 1.5: Existing Conditions Map



11

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

SiTE analySiSSiTE analySiS

The existing site’s conditions extend to other 
significant attributes of soils and slopes. 

Soils
Within the current extents of the dedicated 
land for Tee Naasak Park there are four soil 
types (Figure 1.6). Kidder loam (KdC2) with 
slopes of 6-12%, eroded, makes up most of 
the park. A very small portion of the site has 
the same soil with 12-20% slopes occurring. 
Kidder loam is high in nutrients, well-drained 
and typically used for farmland. It is a loamy 
soil with native vegetation of mixed hardwood 
forests. This is a very common soil in southern 
Wisconsin. The second most-present soil 
is St. Charles silt loam (ScB) to the western 
edge of the park, with slopes of 2-6%. It is 
also a well-drained and contains loamy and 
loess materials, making it very fertile. This 
soil is typically cultivated for crops, but native 
vegetation is vegetated forests/woodlands. 
The Dodge and Kidder soil has 6-20% slopes, 
eroded, and is located on the southern end of 
the park. Similar to the other soils, it is well-
drained and has a high ratio of loess and loam 
materials making it fertile land for crops. The 
native vegetation is deciduous and hardwood 
forests (high occurrence of maples, basswood, 
oak, and hickory). If the park were to expand 
into the wooded knoll, as will be displayed in 
the concepts and final master plan, Dodge 
Silt Loam, 6-12% slopes, eroded, would be an 
additional soil type added to the park. 

Slopes
As displayed through the soils survey, this park 
space has varying slopes up to 20% which 
can restrict certain park amenities and access. 
However, with the Kettle Park West residential 
development it is possible additional unused 
topsoil may become available to partially 
regrade and fill-in areas where desired. This 
would result in easier implementation of 

programming and amenities, and accessible 
paths to them. 

The existing slopes are most concerning in the 
south leg of the park space for accessibility. 
Potentially working with the existing grade to 
integrate pathways or implementing unique 
features could solve any apprehension to park 
development. The knoll as a potential addition 
to the park would also provide the opportunity 
for unique programming through an old-growth 
woodland. The northeast section of the park 
continues to have slopes as shown in Figure 1.5, 
however portions of this data are skewed due 
to the soils being stored by the development 
company as the neighborhood is being built. 
This middle area of the park is where the 
potential to regrade will allow for accessible 
implementation of future amenities. Continuing 
west, the land surface flattens out, providing a 
great opportunity for green space. 



12 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

Figure 1.6: Soils Map



13

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

2.0 Engagement



14 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

EngagEMEnT

Due to Tee Naasak Park being a neighborhood park 
and the neighborhood being a new development 
with few existing residents, we did not conduct a 
wide-scale public survey for this project. Instead, 
we engaged individuals and groups of stakeholders 
to gather opinions on the park space and its desired 
amenities. The stakeholder groups we discussed 
with included representatives from: Kettle Park 
West Senior Living, Forward Development Group 
and Lennar Homes, the Stoughton Rivers and Trails 
Taskforce, and bike enthusiast contacts. 

STakEholdER fEEdBaCkSTakEholdER fEEdBaCk

The Marketing Director from Kettle Park West 
Senior Living showed interest in this park space 
as it will be the closest green space to their 
community. The amenities he wanted to see 
the most were a shelter with power for family 
gatherings, seating, and play structure for when 
grandchildren and family visit residents. He said 
they’d like an area for their shuttle to drop-off 
residents that wouldn’t be able to walk or scooter 
to the park via the multi-use path, especially if the 
center holds larger gatherings at the park. Finally, 
he mentioned many residents and their families 
may be interested in providing funding for the 
project and having a donor brick or item as park of 
the park. If development impact fees do not cover 
the entire park construction, this could be a great 
fundraising opportunity for the City of Stoughton. 

Three members of the Stoughton Rivers and Trails 
Taskforce provided additional insight into desired 
amenities and connection into the Stoughton trails 
networks. Amenities discussed included athletic 
field/recreation space, biking and walking trails, a 
bike park, naturalized areas, sport courts, shelter 
and restrooms, benches, bike repair station, a 
sledding hill, and parking. The need for a variety 
or unique amenities for differing groups of people 
was emphasized, both for the neighborhood 
demographic with housing and senior living facility, 
and the larger community to draw people to the 
park. A concern for pedestrian safety was brought 
up in reference to the trail crossing Highway 51. 
Although outside of the project area, it did bring 
up that fact that people may choose to drive to this 
park space over biking due to intersections that 

don’t have improved pedestrian safety measures. 
This would then justify a parking solution other than 
on-street parking. 

The bike group had six representatives of 
recreational and professional bike enthusiasts. The 
group saw major potential for the development 
of a bike park for this location. This bike park 
could include a pump track, skills areas – both 
intermediate and advanced, and single track 
through an expansion of the park. Discussion was 
had about involving volunteer maintenance, multi-
purpose and multi-season use of the single track, 
bike park examples, and other amenities that would 
support neighborhood use. These amenities could 
include a rentable shelter, benches, bird watching, 
walking and snowshoeing trails. 

Finally, discussions took place with three 
representatives from Forward Development 
Group and Lennar Homes. This answered a lot of 
questions about the development timeline and 
future phases of the project. Most notably, the 
connection to Highway 138 will not take place until 
at least 2025, and at this time the seven parcels 
along the north side of the park will be developed 
into housing. For the proposed future phase, an 
unknown is the extension of Alpine Run. There 
are two concepts for this space in which the road 
continues due west or curves south closer to the 
property line. The future extension of this residential 
development will affect how the park develops to 
occupy the space with amenities and programming. 
In terms of Tee Naasak Park and opinion on uses, 
the representatives wanted to see passive use that 
tie into some built amenities. Maintaining a natural 
aesthetic, while still providing options for families 
and the Kettle park West Senior Living facility. 
Amenities suggested included a pump track, 
shelters and restrooms, playground, trail system, 
pickleball, disc golf, outdoor exercise equipment, 
or a dog park. For parking, they suggested having 
on-street parking along Oak Opening Drive and as 
the parks expands in the future, adding off-street to 
a different area of the park space. 



15

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

3.0 Concepts



16 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

ConCEPTS

After initial public input, two park concepts were 
developed and shared with the City for discussion.  
In the month of July, the concepts were also 
presented at public engagement events to get 
additional feedback. 

ConCEPT 1ConCEPT 1

The first concept (Figure 3.1) has a strong 
emphasis on biking program while still providing 
neighborhood-focused amenities. A playground, 
shelter and restrooms, sledding hill, multi-purpose 
green space and trails expand across the northern 
section of the park, closest to the larger residential 
development. Bike-related programming extends 

south with a developed pump track, adjacent 
maintenance shed, skills areas (intermediate and 
advanced), and a multi-use single-track path 
through the existing woodland knoll. This single-
track path would have to be a phased into the park 
as additional development and land dedication 
took place. The red outlined area represents the 
proposed additional land dedication. This park 
space will also connect to the larger network of 
City of Stoughton pedestrian trails. In this concept, 
the multi-use path runs along Oak Opening Drive 
and would include future trail connections to the 
south and west. Parking in this concept includes 15 
stalls angled off Oak Opening Drive to support park 
use. There is also a drop-off area for larger vehicles 
or bicycle un-loading. Native plantings are placed 

Figure 3.1: Tee Naasak Park - Concept 1



17

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

around the shelter area to help manage stormwater 
and revive native communities of plants, animals, 
and insects. With the addition of homes directly to 
the north, a buffer should be planted to allow for 
screening for those homes from the public park 
space. 

ConCEPT 2ConCEPT 2

The second concept for Tee Naasak Park provides 
more variety of amenities for the neighborhood 
(Figure 3.2). The additions include a sport court, 
hammock park, and 9-hole disc golf course. This 
concept does not provide a pump track, bike skills 
areas, or the single track. A playground, shelter and 
restrooms, sledding hill, multi-purpose green space, 
and multi-use pedestrian paths are still provided, 

but with a different design than Concept 1. Parking 
is modified to an off-street parking lot with 20 
stalls. The trail network displays a paved multi-use 
path adjacent to Oak Opening Drive and along 
the northern edge of the park. Stemming from 
multiple amenities throughout the park, prairie and 
woodland walking paths would provide a passive 
use for natural areas. Bench overlooks are noted 
for resting and birdwatching locations. Similar to 
Concept 1, the addition of some of these paths 
would depend on the expansion of the park and 
additional land dedication. Native plantings are 
proposed in coordination with the disc golf course 
and act as a physical barrier defining green space 
and activity-centered areas. 

Figure 3.2: Tee Naasak Park - Concept 2



18 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

PuBliC fEEdBaCkPuBliC fEEdBaCk

MSA representatives attended two separate Gazebo 
Muiskk Nights, a music event at Rotary Park in the 
City of Stoughton. The venue of Rotary Park was 
a great place to engage community members of 
Stoughton by meeting them in their community. 
MSA attended the July 6th and July 13th events. 
A couple activities for feedback were utilized to 
provide options for those who wanted to leave 
shorter or more in-depth comments.

Displayed on large boards were activity/amenity 
character imagery, the two park concepts, and 
a context map for residents to orient themselves 
to the park space. People were able to provide 
feedback on character imagery with a sticker dot 
activity. A board for sticky notes was available for 
short comments on the likes and dislikes of each 
concept. An online survey was accessible for those 
who may have wanted to take a closer look and 
respond at a later time, and a comment form was 
offered for longer responses and comments on the 
park.

July 6th 
The July 6th event was a beautiful sunny evening 
with a large group of attendees. Utilizing the 
previously-mentioned engagement activities, 
community members provided a lot of feedback on 
the park concepts.

On Concept 1 with the sticky note activity (Figure 
3.4), people enjoyed the bike amenities but disliked 
how bike-focused the park was. More variety was 
suggested for general park users and those who 
would not be interested in the biking elements. 
The response was positive for the playground, 
drop-off zone and sledding hill. Concept 2 was 
more supported due to the variety. Multiple people 
mentioned the hammock park and sport court as 
“likes”. Dislikes for Concept 2 included the parking 
lot without a drop-off zone, no area for teens, 
desire for more native walking paths, and the disc 
golf course (as Stoughton already has one). The 
character imagery board received a lot of stickers 
for the paved multi-use path, bench overlooks, 
and both play options (Figure 3.3). There was one 
comment form from the first event that supported 
ideas from both concepts, however, the individual 
stated that the hammock park was “lazy”.

55

88

66

22

77

88

66

88

33
Figure 3.3: July 6th, Gazebo Musikk - Character Imagery Feedback



19

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

11

22

44

22

88

33

11

55

11

Figure 3.4: July 6th, Gazebo Musikk - Concept Feedback

Figure 3.5: July 13th, Gazebo Musikk - Character Imagery Feedback



20 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

July 13th
The second concert evening was less attended due 
to the rainstorm that passed through the area prior 
to the start. However, people still engaged with the 
activities and provided comments.

The sticky note activity for Concept 1 resulted 
in a similar outcome (Figure 3.6)– people saw 
a lack of variety in the park for uses other than 
biking. There were items people supported like the 
prairie walking paths, bike areas, future bike trail 
connections, natural elements, and the sledding 
hill. Concept 2 had a lot of support for the sport 
court, disc golf and hammock park. Feedback 
was consistent in the desire to mix elements from 
either concept plan to create a park space with 
more variety, that still included biking amenities. 
The character imagery (Figure 3.5) received the 
most interaction for the traditional playground 
equipment, followed by natural play. 

Figure 3.6: July 13th, Gazebo Musikk - Concept Feedback

The passive elements of prairie walking paths and 
the bench overlook were the next most stickered 
images. One online survey response was collected 
during this process that resulted in support of 
the hammock park, sledding hill, disc golf and 
reiterated many times that Stoughton needs a 
single-track course for biking.



21

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

4.0 Master Plan



22 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

MaSTER Plan 

ChaRaCTER iMagERyChaRaCTER iMagERy

To provide visual representation of what amenities 
may fit for Tee Naasak Park, character images were 
used throughout the design process. The amenities 
shown in Figures 4.1-4.18 depict the character for 
the implementation of the passive, natural elements 
and structured programming.  

Shelter and Restrooms
The City and public alike desired both a shelter 
and restrooms for Tee Naasak park. A more neutral 
toned park shelter would fit well into the natural feel 
of the park, this example photo displays wood and 
stone elements. The shelter would be utilized for 
daily park use and could also be rented for events 
or gatherings.

Play
Differing play options are available for the park 
space. A traditional post and deck structure or 
natural play features could both provide unique and 
varieties of play. A combination of the two could 
also be proposed, this would satisfy neighborhood 
residents and tie into natural elements of the site. 

Figure 4.1: Example Shelter and Restrooms

Figure 4.2: Example Post and Deck Playground

Figure 4.3: Example Natural Play



23

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

Multi-purpose green space
An open green space is always desired in a City 
park. From flying kites, pick-up soccer games, or a 
movie in the park venue, this green space provides 
a wide variety of uses. If the park were to expand in 
the future, the field space could also be developed 
into further amenities. 

Sport Court
A sport court is proposed that can provide striping 
for multiple sports. Combination could include any 
of the following: basketball, pickleball, or tennis. A 
sport court like this would cater to the teen through 
senior population.  

Bench Overlook
With the hilly nature of the existing land, walking 
paths and trails could lead to look-out points and 
resting areas with views over the prairie and park 
space. An overlook could also have swing benches 
that add to the peaceful resting nodes along the 
trail.  

Educational Elements
In coordination with the native plantings and 
walking paths, introducing educational signage 
on pollinators and their habitats would be a great 
opportunity. Signage could also be located near the 
shelter area to explain the Tee Naasak Park name 
and pay homage to the Ho Chunk tribe. 

Figure 4.4: Example Sport Court

Figure 4.5: Example Multi-Purpose Green Space

Figure 4.6: Example Bench Overlook

Figure 4.7: Example Educational Signage



24 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

Pump Track
A pump track is shown that will be part of the 
first phase of bike amenities in the park. A pump 
track allows for a range of bike users to ride on 
a dedicated space. It can also be utilized for 
skateboarders other non-motorized vehicles. 

Bike Skills Area
The bike skills area would be part of the second 
phase of bike amenities in Tee Naasak Park. A 
bike skills area can provide the next level skill set 
for biking. Obstacles, tricks, and jumps can be 
designed for this area to provide practice space. 

Single-Track/Woodland Path
The final phase of the bike amenities would be a 
multi-use single track path through the woodland 
area – if additional land dedication occurs. The 
single-track path would be widened for multi-
purpose use (walking, snowshoeing paths) 
and biking routes would be well-marked and 
maintained as a single-direction looped trail for 
pedestrian safety.

Sledding Hill
The sledding hill would most likely be phased in 
based on land dedication as well. From the wooded 
knoll the sledding hill would give multi-season use 
for the park and provide a great resource for the 
neighborhood.

Figure 4.8: Example Pump Track

Figure 4.9: Example Bike Skills Area

Figure 4.10: Example Single-Track/Woodland Path

Figure 4.11: Example Sledding Hill



25

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

Paved Multi-Use Path
Connecting to Oak Opening Drive and the existing 
City of Stoughton trails network the multi-use path 
will add an accessible path through this park space. 

Prairie Walking Paths
Walking paths through the park that are not paved 
add to the natural aesthetic of the space. Along 
these pathways additional educational signage 
can be placed. Prairie paths would extend into the 
woodland if additional parkland were dedicated.

Utility Items
To keep the park clean and a desired space to 
spend time, amenities like trash and recycling 
receptacles, pet waste stations and drinking 
fountains would be placed in the site. To 
accommodate the bike amenities and promote 
multi-modal transportation to the park bike racks 
and a bike repair station are proposed. 

Figure 4.12: Example Paved Multi-Use Path

Figure 4.13: Example Prairie Walking Paths



26 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

Figure 4.14: Example Trash and Recycling Receptacles

Figure 4.15: Example Bike Racks Figure 4.16: Example Pet Waste Station

Figure 4.17: Example Bike Repair Station Figure 4.18: Example Water Fountain and Bottle Filler



27

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

MaSTER PlanMaSTER Plan

After sharing results from the public input with the 
City, decisions were made on final programming 
and amenities for Tee Naasak Park. Selecting 
amenities from both initial concepts, a final master 
plan was developed for Tee Naasak Park.

Insert Final MP



28 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

5.0 Implementation



29

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

iMPlEMEnTaTion 

Plan CoST ESTiMaTEPlan CoST ESTiMaTE

Alis ma doloreste nonseque offictur sinusci llatesti 
ilique venimollor aut liquate mporis nobit moluptur, 
occustrum eicil moditiaspero molesci mentur aut 
audani untur?
Genis mi, inimus es ex et estrum, offictia nem 
vellorit, num aditatas con plabo. Estibus aut 
ommolore nectias perumet invenima vel ipsam



30 2023

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

PhaSing PlanPhaSing Plan

Alis ma doloreste nonseque offictur sinusci llatesti 
ilique venimollor aut liquate mporis nobit moluptur, 
occustrum eicil moditiaspero molesci mentur aut 
audani untur?
Genis mi, inimus es ex et estrum, offictia nem 
vellorit, num aditatas con plabo. Estibus aut 
ommolore nectias perumet invenima vel ipsam



31

Te
e 
N
aa
sa
k 
Pa

rk
 M

as
te
r P

la
n

2023

Appendix


	Parks & Recreation Committee Agenda 10-17-23
	Park  Rec minutes 8-15-23 draft
	October Directors Report
	Magnolia Springs Restoration Plan
	Magnolia Springs_GDP_2023-05-02_reduced
	Labeled Master Plan
	Tee Naasak Park MP Report DRAFT

